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We have reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report of the Sinclair Community College, Montgomery 
County, prepared by Plante & Moran, PLLC, for the audit period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.  
Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, 
Revised Code.  The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, 
accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.    
 
Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the 
Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State, 
regulations and grant requirements.  The Sinclair Community College is responsible for compliance with 
these laws and regulations. 
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees 
Sinclair Community College

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component unit of Sinclair Community College (the "College"), a component unit of the State of Ohio,
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Sinclair Community College's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of
Sinclair Community College as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2022, the College adopted new accounting guidance under
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College's ability to continue as a going
concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Sinclair Community College

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not
a guarantee that audits conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing audits in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
College's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the College's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audits.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedules of the College's proportionate share of the net pension liability, the
schedules of the College's pension contributions, the schedules of the College's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability, and the schedules of the College's OPEB contributions be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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To the Board of Trustees 
Sinclair Community College

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Sinclair Community College's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"), is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 8, 2022 on
our consideration of Sinclair Community College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Sinclair
Community College's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sinclair Community
College's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 8, 2022
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SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
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Introduction 
 
This annual report consists of three main parts - the MD&A, the financial statements and a section 
containing reports on the audit of federal grants and contracts received by Sinclair Community College 
(the “College” or “Sinclair”).  
 
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the College’s financial performance provides an 
overview of the College’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.  Please 
read it in conjunction with the College’s financial statements, which begin on page 18. 
 
Financial and Institutional Highlights 

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to alter world conditions during fiscal year 2022.  Still, Sinclair 
Community College realized many important achievements as related to its mission and strategic 
priorities.  Several of these are discussed below. 

 At the outset of the COVID-19 pandemic, President Johnson and his administration led emergency 
operating and planning efforts to ensure the safety of the students, faculty and staff while continuing 
the educational process.  This process continued during fiscal year 2022 and additional technology 
and student support was deployed to ensure goals were achieved. 

 In keeping with the goals of the comprehensive completion plan, the College continued to set records 
for student achievement, awarding over 11,000 credentials to roughly 8,700 individual students.  The 
aforementioned plan seeks to expedite and lower the cost of students’ progress toward their 
educational goals. 

 As a result of continuous improvements in student course completions, credit accumulations and 
credential completions, the College received an increased share of performance-based state funding 
for the seventh consecutive year.     

 Sinclair’s financial health remains strong due to the prudent planning and vigilance of the Board of 
Trustees, administration and other College leaders.  The College’s fiscal health as measured by the 
Ohio Senate Bill 6 accountability scorecard was a perfect score of 5.0 for fiscal 2022. 

 The College has been awarded $63.0 million in Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) 
and Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) from three rounds of federal stimulus monies in connection with 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  For fiscal year 2022, $33.3 million in HEERF funding was used for student 
financial grants and to defray expenses and lost revenue resulting from the pandemic ($26.9 million 
and $2.8 million was spent in fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively).  

 The College continued to enjoy success with the College Credit Plus program, a State of Ohio 
initiative to provide college credit courses to high school students.  Approximately 8,250 students 
from over one hundred high schools were enrolled during fiscal 2022 representing a 1% increase 
from the prior year. 

 Sinclair tripled its award of baccalaureate degrees in fiscal 2022 relative to 2021. 

 Despite lingering supply chain challenges in the construction sector of the economy, Sinclair 
continued to invest in its physical plant during fiscal 2022, highlighted by new and upgraded biology 
and chemistry labs at Dayton and Centerville, new advanced manufacturing education spaces at 
Courseview, and significant lifecycle maintenance to parking facilities on the Dayton campus. 

 The College continued to demonstrate an exceptional level of commitment to teaching and learning in 
fiscal year 2022 by devoting a significantly higher percentage of its resources to the instruction, 
academic, and student support functions than the average of Ohio’s other public community colleges. 
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Financial Management Philosophy and Accountability  

Sinclair Community College utilizes a forward-thinking and systematic approach to managing financial 
resources that is guided by the following principles: 

 Use money as a tool to accomplish the mission: Money is a tool used in fulfilling our service 
mission but is not an end in itself. 

 Employ results-oriented spending: This is generally tied to an expectation of clear mission results. 

 Focus on long-term stability: Use financial modeling and planning to help ensure the long-term 
sustainability and financial viability of the College. 

 Pay as you go: Save money up front and place in allocated reserves for later use in major capital 
expenditures, thereby avoiding or minimizing the use of debt financing. 

 Save with a plan and purpose: Maintain allocated reserves to provide flexibility in managing future 
opportunities and challenges. 

 Plan for margin: Budget for a 3% to 5% positive margin on the annual operating budget (revenue to 
exceed expenses) to provide funding for facility maintenance, capital spending, and other needs. 

 Save and plan for emergencies: Plan/budget for unforeseen emergencies and contingencies. 
 
Inputs into the financial management and measurement process come from a variety of sources as 
shown in the diagram below: 
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The State of Ohio computes a fiscal accountability measure each year for all public higher education 
institutions pursuant to Senate Bill 6 passed in 1997. Sinclair’s annual scores are depicted in Figure 1 
below.  The College has averaged an overall score of 4.7 since inception and again achieved a perfect 
5.0 score in fiscal year 2022. 
 

 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements are presented in the format required by generally accepted accounting principles 
and accepted by the Ohio Department of Higher Education and the Ohio Department of Budget and 
Management for all state-assisted two- and four-year colleges and universities in Ohio. The statements 
are: 

 Statements of net position 

 Statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 

 Statements of cash flows 

The statements are prepared on an accrual basis and present all assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the College, both financial and capital, and short and long 
term. They also present all revenues and expenses of the College during the year, regardless of when 
cash was received or paid.  

Collectively, the statements provide a complete picture of the College’s financial condition as of June 30, 
2022, 2021, and 2020 and the results of its operations for the fiscal years then ended. 
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 68 and 75 
 
GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, requires the College to report a share of the 
unfunded liabilities of Ohio’s state retirement systems, in its statements of net position in 2022, 2021 and  
2020, and its impact in 2022, 2021 and 2020 on the statements of revenues, expense and changes in net 
position. The amount of net pension liability reported on the statements of net position equals the 
College’s proportionate share of the unfunded pension liabilities of the state systems that are associated 
with current, former, and retired College employees and their beneficiaries. However, under Ohio law, 
there is no legal means to enforce the State systems’ pension liabilities reported under GASB 68 
against the College or any other Ohio public employer. Consequently, the reader should keep that 
in mind when reviewing the financial statements and considering Sinclair’s real financial position 
and operational results. 
 
Effective July 1, 2017, GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, requires the College to report a share of the unfunded liabilities of the Ohio’s state 
retirement systems, related to the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) other than pension, in its 
statements of net position in 2022, 2021 and 2020 and its impact in 2022, 2021 and 2020 on the 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The amount of the OPEB liability reported 
on the statements of net position equals the College’s proportionate share of the unfunded OPEB 
liabilities of the state systems that are associated with the current, former and retired College employees 
and their beneficiaries. However, under Ohio law, there is no legal means to enforce the State 
systems’ OPEB liabilities reported under GASB 75 against the College or any other Ohio public 
employer. Consequently, the reader should keep that in mind when reviewing the financial 
statements and considering Sinclair’s real financial position and operational results. 
 
Net Position 

Table 1 below is a condensed version of the balance sheet and net position.  The components of net 
position that relate to the results of College operations, exclusive of the pension and OPEB accounting, 
are shown in Table 1A.  A discussion of the underlying factors impacting the change in net position is 
provided below. 
 
The College’s total net position can be viewed as being comprised of five components: 1) capital assets, 
2) externally restricted net position, 3) unrestricted net position resulting from College operations, 4) 
unrestricted net position related to pension activity, and 5) unrestricted net position related to OPEB 
activity. In the discussion that follows, it will be helpful to keep in mind that two major types of transactions 
do not change the value of total net position. These are: 

 A transfer of net position from one net position category to another.  

 Capital asset acquisitions, for which payment reduces either unrestricted or restricted net position, 
while increasing capital assets by the same amount. 
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2022 2021, As Restated 2020

Assets:

Current assets 71.8$     63.2$                70.8$     

Investments 150.7     150.6                115.9     

Capital assets, net 199.0     194.2                195.8     

Right to use assets, net 4.3         5.0                   -           

Net other postemployment benefit asset * 15.0       10.4                  5.8         

Total assets 440.8     423.4                388.3     

Deferred outflows of resources - pension activity * 26.8       18.9                  22.6       

Deferred outflows of resources - other postemployment benefit activity * 1.3         4.0                   6.8         

Total assets and deferred outflows 468.9     446.3                417.7     

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 24.9       22.8                  22.3       

Long-term liabilities 9.2         9.3                   5.2         

Net pension liability * 60.2       114.0                124.7     

Net other postemployment benefit liability * -           -                     36.1       

Total liabilities 94.3       146.1                188.3     

Deferred inflows of resources:

Property tax levy 38.2       38.0                  38.6       

Pension activity * 67.9       23.2                  19.5       

Other postemployment benefit activity * 15.8       21.3                  12.3       

Total deferred inflows 121.9     82.5                  70.4       

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 216.2     228.6                258.7     

Net position:

Investment in capital assets 199.0     194.4                195.8     

Restricted - expendable, grants and contracts 1.9         1.7                   1.8         

Unrestricted - operations 152.6     146.7                118.8     

Unrestricted - pension activity * (101.3)    (118.2)               (121.6)    

Unrestricted - other postemployment benefit activity * 0.5         (6.9)                  (35.8)      

Total net position 252.7     217.7                159.0     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 468.9$    446.3$              417.7$    

* Line item related to pension or OPEB accounting

2022 2021, As Restated 2020

Investment in capital assets 199.0$    194.4$              195.8$    

Restricted - expendable, grants and contracts 1.9         1.7                   1.8         

Unrestricted - operations 152.6     146.7                118.8     

Total net position excluding pension & OPEB 353.5$    342.8$              316.4$    

NET POSITION EXCLUDING PENSION AND OPEB ACCOUNTING

(in millions of dollars)

June 30,

TABLE 1
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

(in millions of dollars)

June 30,

TABLE 1A
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Fiscal 2022 
 
Total net position at June 30, 2022 was $252.7 million (Table 1).  Liabilities of $34.1 million, exclusive of 
the net pension and OPEB liabilities, were only 8% of total assets of $425.8 million, exclusive of the 
OPEB asset, primarily due to the fact that the College has purposely avoided long-term debt by 
strategically using various funding sources, including state capital appropriations, to manage growth and 
maintain a low level of deferred infrastructure maintenance.  The College reported OPEB asset of $15.0 
million and net pension liability of $60.2 million, pension and OPEB deferred outflows of resources of 
$28.1 million, and pension and OPEB deferred inflows of resources of $83.7 million.  A fuller discussion of 
pension reporting can be found in Notes A and H of this report.  Deferred inflows of resources also 
include future property tax levy receipts of $38.2 million - see Notes A and F for a discussion.   
 
Net position exclusive of pension and OPEB activity (Table 1A) improved by $10.7 million (from $342.8 
million to $353.5 million) in fiscal 2022. The increase had these components: 

 A net increase from operations of $22.2 million after depreciation and lease amortization expenses of 
$13.6 million, but exclusive of the change in the fair value of investments.  This included the net 
impact from federal Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) spent in fiscal year 2022. 

 An decrease in the fair value of investments of $11.5 million; that is, the net unrealized gain in the 
investment portfolio decreased from $7.9 million at June 30, 2021 to a loss of $3.6 million at June 30, 
2022. 

Also, in fiscal 2022, capital asset acquisitions consumed approximately $17.4 million of unrestricted and 
restricted net position and added a corresponding amount to capital assets. 
 
Fiscal 2021 
 
Total net position at June 30, 2021 was $217.7 million (Table 1).  Liabilities of $32.1 million, exclusive of 
the net pension and OPEB liabilities, were only 7.8% of total assets of $413.0 million, exclusive of the 
OPEB asset, primarily due to the fact that the College has purposely avoided long-term debt by 
strategically using various funding sources, including state capital appropriations, to manage growth and 
maintain a low level of deferred infrastructure maintenance.  The College reported OPEB asset of $10.4 
million and net pension and OPEB liabilities of $114.0 million, pension and OPEB deferred outflows of 
resources of $22.9 million, and pension and OPEB deferred inflows of resources of $44.5 million.  A fuller 
discussion of pension reporting can be found in Notes A and H of this report.  Deferred inflows of 
resources also include future property tax levy receipts of $38.0 million - see Notes A and F for a 
discussion.   
 
Net position exclusive of pension and OPEB activity (Table 1A) improved by $26.4 million (from $316.4 
million to $342.8 million) in fiscal 2021. The increase had these components: 

 A net increase from operations of $23.8 million after depreciation and lease amortization expenses of 
$13.4 million, but exclusive of the change in the fair value of investments.  This included the net 
impact from federal Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) spent in fiscal year 2021. 

 An increase in the fair value of investments of $2.6 million; that is, net unrealized gains in the 
investment portfolio increased from $5.3 million at June 30, 2020 to $7.9 million at June 30, 2021 

Also, in fiscal 2021, capital asset acquisitions consumed approximately $10.9 million of unrestricted and 
restricted net position and added a corresponding amount to capital assets. 
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (SRECNP) shown in Table 2 
present the College’s operating results for fiscal years 2022, 2021, and 2020.  Table 2A presents a 
summary of the statements excluding the impact of pension and OPEB accounting.  The following 
narrative provides an overview of the key elements in the SRECNP. 
 

Revenues (Operating, Nonoperating) 

 Operating revenue of the College is defined as payments received for goods and services provided, 
and is composed mainly of tuition and fees, federal and state grants, and income from auxiliary 
operations. (Note: In accordance with the required reporting display, gross tuition and fees on the 
condensed SRECNP are reduced by grants and scholarships used to help pay those charges, resulting 
in net tuition revenue). 

 In fiscal 2022, operating revenue increased $7.9 million compared to the prior year.  This was 
driven by other revenue, tuition and fees and federal grants and contracts. Tuition increased $1.8 
million due to an increase in tuition rate, and federal grants increased $2.2 million. Other revenue 
increased $2.9 million, primarily due to the sale of excess IP addresses, and increase in pass-
through revenues generated by the Ohio Means Jobs initiative. All other operating revenues were 
comparable to fiscal year 2021.  

 In fiscal 2021, operating revenue decreased $4.0 million compared to the prior year.  This was 
primarily due to auxiliary enterprises, net of grants and scholarships, and other revenue 
decreasing $2.2 million and $1.4 million, respectively, due to the impact of COVID-19 on the 
bookstore, food service, parking operations, workforce development and the conference center. 
All other operating revenues were comparable to prior year.  

 Nonoperating revenue includes state appropriations, county property tax levy receipts, certain 
government grants, investment income, and state capital grants.   

 In fiscal 2022, nonoperating revenue decreased $4.0 million or 3% versus the previous year due 
to the following: 

 State appropriations increased $2.4 million or 4.5% as the College continued to achieve 
better than average results in the state’s performance-based funding formula.    

 As related to the COVID-19 federal economic recovery response, HEERF and CRF grant 
revenues of $33.3 million were recognized in fiscal year 2022.   

 The fair value of investments decreased by $11.5 million over the prior year. These 
amounts mainly reflect changes in the net unrealized gains/losses associated with 
investments held by the College.  At June 30, 2022, the portfolio included $3.6 million in net 
unrealized losses.  

 In fiscal 2021, nonoperating revenue increased $18.5 million or 14% versus the previous year 
due to the following: 

 State appropriations increased $3.6 million or 7.3% as the College continued to achieve 
better than average results in the state’s performance-based funding formula.    

 As related to the COVID-19 federal economic recovery response, HEERF and CRF grant 
revenues of $26.9 million was recognized in fiscal year 2021.   

 The fair value of investments increased by $2.6 million over the prior year. These amounts 
mainly reflect changes in the net unrealized gains/losses associated with investments held 
by the College.  Those changes are primarily the result of price movements in the fixed 
income securities year over year. At June 30, 2021, the portfolio includes $7.9 million in net 
unrealized gains.  
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2022 
2021, 

As Restated 2020 
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, net of grants and scholarships 32.5$          30.7$          30.7$          
Federal grants and contracts 6.2              4.0              4.2              
State and local grants and contracts 1.6              1.4              1.4              
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 3.1              3.4              3.5              
Sales and services of educational departments 1.2              0.4              0.5              
Auxiliary enterprises, net of grants and scholarships 2.6              2.5              4.7              
Other 4.7              1.6              3.0              

Total operating revenues 51.9            44.0            48.0            

Operating expenses:
Instruction 63.9            67.7            74.7            
Public service 2.6              2.1              2.2              
Academic support 10.6            6.8              13.0            
Student services 15.4            10.4            19.6            
Institutional support 13.8            5.0              20.9            
Plant operations and maintenance 14.0            11.5            13.9            
Depreciation & Amortization 13.6            13.4            12.1            
Student aid 23.9            13.1            7.4              
Auxiliary enterprises 3.6              3.8              6.5              

Total operating expenses 161.4          133.8          170.3          

Nonoperating and other revenues (expenses):
State appropriations 55.5            53.1            49.5            
County tax levy 39.1            38.6            38.4            
HEERF and CRF grant revenues 33.3            26.9            2.8              
Federal student aid grant programs 18.4            19.1            22.2            
State student aid grant programs 2.2              1.5              1.3              
Investment income 3.2              3.1              3.6              
Net change in the fair value of investments (11.5)           2.6              2.7              
Capital grants 4.3              3.6              9.5              

Total nonoperating and other revenues 144.5          148.5          130.0          

Change in net position 35.0            58.7            7.7              

Net position:

    Beginning of year 217.7          159.0          151.3          

    End of year 252.7$        217.7$        159.0$        

(in millions of dollars)
Year ended June 30,

TABLE 2
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
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2022 
2021, 

As Restated 2020 

Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, net of grants and scholarships 32.5$          30.7$          30.7$          

Federal grants and contracts 6.2              4.0              4.2              

State and local grants and contracts 1.6              1.4              1.4              

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 3.1              3.4              3.5              

Sales and services of educational departments 1.2              0.4              0.5              

Auxiliary enterprises, net of grants and scholarships 2.6              2.5              4.7              

Other 4.7              1.6              3.0              

Total operating revenues 51.9            44.0            48.0            

Operating expenses:

Instruction 75.7            74.4            72.3            

Public service 2.6              2.3              2.2              

Academic support 12.9            11.3            12.1            

Student services 19.2            17.9            18.2            

Institutional support 19.4            16.8            18.2            

Plant operations and maintenance 14.8            13.1            13.5            

Depreciation & Amortization 13.6            13.4            12.1            

Student aid 23.9            13.1            7.4              

Auxiliary enterprises 3.6              3.8              6.5              

Total operating expenses 185.7          166.1          162.5          

Nonoperating and other revenues (expenses):

State appropriations 55.5            53.1            49.5            

County tax levy 39.1            38.6            38.4            

HEERF and CRF grant revenues 33.3            26.9            2.8              
Federal student aid grant programs 18.4            19.1            22.2            
State student aid grant programs 2.2              1.5              1.3              

Investment income 3.2              3.1              3.6              

Net change in the fair value of investments (11.5)           2.6              2.7              

Capital grants 4.3              3.6              9.5              

Total nonoperating and other revenues 144.5          148.5          130.0          

Change in net position 10.7            26.4            15.5            

Net position:

    Beginning of year 342.8          316.4          300.9          

    End of year 353.5$        342.8$        316.4$        

TABLE 2A
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

EXCLUDING PENSION AND OPEB ACCOUNTING
(in millions of dollars)

 



SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 
 
 
 

13 

 

Figure 2 below presents the composition of Sinclair’s revenue streams. 

 

 

Operating Expenses 

 Operating expenses are those expenditures related to the College’s educational programs and 
services. Note that pension and OPEB accounting related expense impacts are included in 
operating expenses ($24.3 million decrease in 2022 and $32.3 million decrease in 2021). 

 Total operating expenses increased by $27.6 million or 20.6% in 2022 due to the aforementioned 
net impacts of pension and OPEB accounting changes.  The net impact of pension and OPEB 
accounting changes was a decrease in expense of $24.3 million in 2022 compared to an 
decrease in expense of $32.3 million in 2021.  Exclusive of the pension and OPEB expenses, 
operating expenses in 2022 increased by $19.6 million due to increases in student aid of $10.8 
million, primarily associated with COVID-19 and HEERF spending, and an increase to institutional 
support of $2.7 million, much of which was dedicated to mitigating the effects of the pandemic.  
All other functional operating expenses were comparable to prior year. 

The College continues to be proactive in controlling costs through efficiency and restructuring 
initiatives while investing new resources for supporting student access and success, even during 
a pandemic.   
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 Total operating expenses decreased by $36.5 million or 21.4% in 2021 due to the aforementioned 
net impacts of pension and OPEB accounting changes.  The net impact of pension and OPEB 
accounting changes was a decrease in expense of $32.3 million in 2021 compared to an increase 
in expense of $7.8 million in 2020.  Exclusive of the pension and OPEB expenses, operating 
expenses in 2021 increased by $3.6 million due to increases in student aid of $5.7 million, all 
associated with COVID-19 and HEERF spending, offset by a decrease in auxiliary enterprises of 
$2.7 million. All other functional operating expenses were comparable to prior year. The College 
continues to be proactive in controlling costs through efficiency and restructuring initiatives while 
investing new resources for supporting student access and success, even during a pandemic.   

 

Figure 3 breaks out Sinclair’s total operating expenses by functional category excluding the impacts 
of pension and OPEB accounting. 
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Cash Flows 
 
The statements of cash flows present information related to the cash inflows and outflows that result from 
the operating, noncapital and capital financing, and investing activities of the College.  In each of the 
years shown in Table 3, the major cash inflows were from student tuition and fees, grants and contracts, 
auxiliary enterprise charges, state appropriations, county tax levy receipts, federal Pell Grant and Direct 
Loan Program receipts, and investment maturities.  The major cash outflows were payments to 
employees and vendors, payments of Pell Grant and Direct Loan funds to students, and the purchase of 
capital assets and new investments.  

2022 
2021, 

As Restated 2020 

Cash (used in) provided by:

  Operating activities  $      (123.0)  $      (107.3)  $      (103.3)

  Non-capital financing activities           148.5           138.4           113.2 

  Capital and related financing actvities            (14.8)              (8.7)            (15.8)

  Investing activities              (7.3)            (28.6)             17.0 

  Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents               3.4              (6.2)             11.1 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year             13.0             19.2               8.1 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $         16.4  $         13.0  $         19.2 

TABLE 3
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions of dollars)
Years Ended June 30,

   
Capital Assets  
 
Highlights of the College’s capital program in Table 4 below, include the following: 

 Sinclair purchased Building A at the Mason Campus during FY 2022.   

 Building improvement projects on the Dayton campus in 2022 included renovation to the Fourth and 
Fifth Streets campus entry points, creation of a parking deck and elevator, refurbishing the pathway 
through campus from the parking garage and front entrance, installing a plaza elevator cube with 
access to the library and other projects.   

 Additions to equipment inventory in 2022 and 2021 included replacement of information technology 
system and various equipment for several academic programs.   
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2022 2021 2020 

Land and improvements            19.9            19.0            18.2 

Buildings and improvements          158.9          158.5          151.5 

Equipment and fixtures            10.8              8.7              8.6 

Library materials              0.2              0.2              0.2 

Construction in progress              9.2              7.8            17.3 

Total capital assets          199.0          194.2          195.8 

TABLE 4
CAPITAL ASSETS

(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars)

 

Factors Impacting Future Periods 

COVID-19: The ongoing global pandemic and its impact on the economy are the most obvious factors 
impacting future periods.  At the outset of the situation in March 2020, the traditional budget process was 
suspended, and the College administration quickly moved into a process of macro financial scenario 
planning.  Sinclair’s financial structure and guiding principles are built for long-term sustainability including 
weathering economic downturns. Long-range projection scenarios are constantly updated and tested to 
inform and drive proactive planning actions to anticipate and adjust to the realities of economic 
conditions. Consequently, the College’s Board of Trustees adopted a balanced budget for fiscal 2022 that 
was measured, responsible and forward thinking. 
 
Sinclair was awarded $63.0 million in Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) and 
Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) from three rounds of federal stimulus monies in connection with the 
pandemic.  For fiscal year 2022, $33.3 million in HEERF funding was used for student financial grants 
and to defray expenses and lost revenue resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic ($26.9 million and $2.8 
million was spent in fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively).   
 
The College has taken extraordinary steps to protect the health and safety of students and employees 
while at the same time keeping the educational process moving forward.  These efforts resulted in a very 
successful fiscal year 2022 and continued good results so far in fiscal year 2023, from both an 
educational and financial perspective. 
 
State of Ohio Appropriations: The State of Ohio is in the second year of its two-year budget which 
provided increases in higher education State Share of Instruction (SSI) funding of approximately 1% each 
for fiscal years 2022 and 2023.  Sinclair has experienced better than average results in the allocation of 
dollars through the State’s performance-based funding model due to its aggressive efforts to increase the 
number of students successfully completing courses, attaining intermediate milestones and earning 
degrees/certificates and/or transferring to baccalaureate institutions.  Since the new formula was enacted 
in 2015, the College’s share of overall community college funding has increased in each ensuing year as 
shown in Figure 4.  
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Montgomery County Levy: The two levies of the College are used entirely for expenditures benefiting 
students who reside in Montgomery County.  This support manifests in the form of tuition subsidy and 
support for services at the Dayton campus.  Levy A (3.2 mills, 10 years) was renewed in November of 
2017 and is complemented by Levy B (1.0 mill, 8 years targeted to support growth in high demand 
programs such as health sciences), passed for the first time in the fall of 2015.  Combined, these levies 
are expected to account for approximately $38 million in annual revenue going forward.  So far, property 
values and collections have held steady in spite of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Levy B is slated for a 
renewal vote on November 8, 2022. 
 
Student Enrollments and Tuition & Fee Revenue: For the five years prior to the onset of the COVID-19 
pandemic. Sinclair’s enrollment, as measured by was full-time equivalent (FTE) students, held remarkably 
steady.  Over the course of fiscal year 2021 and 2022, the college realized declines in enrollment as 
students balanced their own responses to the pandemic with their educational endeavors. Sinclair 
anticipates enrollment to recover starting in fiscal 2023 as barriers related to the pandemic fall and more 
students pursue Sinclair programs in high demand areas such as health sciences and advanced 
manufacturing and technology. 
 
In addition, Sinclair expects to realize significant enrollment growth from its prison education program as 
the result of receiving approval to participate in the Second Chance Pell program for incarcerated 
individuals beginning in the fall of 2022.  The program will allow the college to expand its offerings in this 
arena, building on a long history of helping incarcerated persons gain the skills necessary to be 
successful after their release.  
 
Workforce Development and Related Activities: Sinclair will continue to review and refresh its non-credit 
training and conference center offerings to ensure that the College’s programming is aligned with 
community needs. Sinclair is a leader in new markets in Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS), forging 
important partnerships with various national and regional organizations.  In addition, Sinclair partnered 
with Amazon Web Services to launch the first Fiber Optic Fusion Splicing training course. In partnership 
with Montgomery County, Sinclair offered its first IT Fundamentals program at the new Westown Center 
location. 
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Facilities Campus Master Plan: As noted earlier herein, Sinclair adopts s thoughtful, proactive approach 
to the maintenance of its facilities and equipment, as evidenced by its $17.8 million capital budget for 
fiscal 2023, the bulk of which is earmarked to replace equipment and building systems at the end of their 
useful lives.  In September 2022, the Sinclair Board of Trustees approved an additional $1.8 million for 
campus master plans including the expansion of the Aviation Maintenance program at the Dayton 
International Airport and upgrades to the conference center in Building 12. 
 
Sinclair’s Strategic Planning: During 2018, the College undertook a comprehensive strategic planning 
process, which included participants from the Sinclair College and Foundation Board of Trustees, 
community leaders, elected officials, faculty, staff and students.  This process resulted in the Sinclair 
Board of Trustee’s adoption of alignment, growth and equity as the three top-level strategic priorities.  The 
process also resulted in a set of strategic policy rules and alignment strategies to guide future initiatives.  
The College is in the process of implementing strategies and programs to meet the objectives of the plan 
including those discussed at the Board of Trustees Advance in January 2022.  
 
Efficiency and Accountability: Sinclair has a history of being efficient, affordable, and accountable. In fact, 
the College has realized over $56 million in cumulative savings, efficiencies, and cost avoidance during 
the past ten years.  As example, Sinclair’s utility costs are about 20% lower than ten years ago (about 
$0.7 million less) due to energy conservation measures.   Sinclair will continue to drive efficiencies and 
cost savings to ensure that financial resources remain healthy and the college remains on a sustainable 
path. 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization: Sinclair Community College (the “College”), a two-year institution of higher education, began 
operations as a public community college in 1966. The College is operated by the Warren County 
Montgomery County Community College District, and is exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to 
provisions of Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. The College offers associate degrees, certificate 
programs, and continuing education in the areas of life and health sciences; science, mathematics, and 
engineering; liberal arts, communication, and social sciences; and business and public services. 

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) using the economic resource measurement focus. The College follows all applicable GASB 
pronouncements. The College follows the “business-type activities” reporting requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 35, which provides a comprehensive one-line look at the College’s financial activities. 

Basis of Accounting: The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis, 
whereby all revenue is recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced 
to a legal or contractual obligation to pay.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash, certificates of deposit, and money market funds, stated at cost, are 
considered cash and cash equivalents with original maturities less than 90 days. 

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary 
enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. Accounts receivable also include amounts due from 
the federal government, state and local governments, and private sources, in connection with reimbursement 
of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the College’s grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are 
recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts of approximately $646,000 and $688,000 at June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. The College determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including 
the length of time accounts receivable are past due, previous loss history, and the condition of the general 
economy and the industry as a whole. 

Inventories: Inventories, which consist principally of publications, general merchandise, and other goods, 
are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

Investments: Investments are stated at fair value. Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for on 
the trade date basis. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reported as investment income or loss.  

The College has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio). STAR Ohio is 
an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the state to 
pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investment 
company but has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 79, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, which 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for qualifying external investment pools that elect 
to measure for financial reporting purposes all of their investments at amortized cost. Investments in STAR 
Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price at which the investment could be sold on 
June 30, 2022. 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost, or if acquired by gift, at acquisition value at the date of 
the gift.  When capital assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the net carrying value of such assets is 
removed from the accounts and the net investment in capital assets component of net position is adjusted as 
appropriate.  Capital asset additions of equipment and fixtures with a cost equal to or in excess of $5,000 are 
capitalized and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives in the table that follows. 
Buildings and improvements with a cost in excess of $100,000 are capitalized and depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows: 

 Buildings and improvements 10 - 60 years 

 Equipment and fixtures 5 - 20 years 

        Library materials                                                                                          5 years 

Leased assets are amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the 
useful life of the underlying asset.  The amortized lease asset is reported as an outflow of resources which 
is combined with depreciation expense related to other capital assets for financial statement purposes. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The College reports deferred 
outflows of resources for certain pension-related and OPEB-related amounts, such as change in expected 
and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and certain contributions made to the plan subsequent to 
the measurement date. More detailed information can be found in Note H. 

Unearned Student Fee Income: Unearned student fee income includes the unearned portion of student tuition 
and fees for the summer and fall sessions.  Unearned student fee income also includes advance payments 
received from businesses for non-credit classes and seminars conducted after June 30. 

Compensated Absences: Administrative and professional employees earn vacation leave at a rate of 13.33 
hours for each month of service up to a maximum of 240 hours.  Support staff earns vacation at a rate of eight 
hours per month for the first five years of service up to a maximum of 240 hours.  After five years of continuous 
employment, an additional eight hours per year (.66 hours per month) are added to the accrual rate each year 
until the maximum monthly accrual rate of 13.33 hours is reached. Upon termination of employment, an 
employee is entitled to payment for all accrued vacation hours.  The College has accrued a vacation liability 
for all employees equal to amounts earned. 

All College employees earn 10 hours of sick leave for each month of service up to a maximum of 120 hours 
per year.  Unused sick leave accumulates up to a maximum of 1,200 hours.  This sick leave will either be 
absorbed by time off due to illness or injury, or within certain limitations, be paid to the employee upon 
retirement.  The amount paid to an employee upon retirement is limited to one-quarter of the accumulated 
sick leave up to a maximum payout of 240 hours.  The College has accrued a sick leave liability for all 
employees equal to the maximum payout upon retirement. 

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System Pension Plan (OPERS) and the State Teachers 
Retirement System of Ohio Pension Plan (STRS) and the additions to/deductions from the OPERS’ and 
STRS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPERS 
and STRS. OPERS and STRS use the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis 
of accounting.  Contribution revenue is recorded as contributions are due, pursuant to legal requirements.  
Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized as expense when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Other Postemployment Benefit: For purposes of measuring the net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of OPERS and STRS and additions to/deductions 
from OPERS’ and STRS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the OPERS and STRS. OPERS and STRS uses the economic resources measurement focus 
and the full accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, OPERS and STRS recognizes benefit payments 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  

Deferred Inflows of Resources: In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The College reports deferred inflows of 
resources for certain pension-related and OPEB-related amounts, such as the difference between projected 
and actual earnings of the plan’s investments. More detailed information can be found in Note H.   

The College also has deferred inflows of resources for property taxes.  Property taxes represent amounts 
for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, but which were levied to finance 
fiscal year 2023 and 2022, respectively, operations.  

Net Position Classifications: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 35 guidelines, the College’s 
resources are classified into the following three net position categories: 

▪ Investment in capital assets: Capitalized physical assets, net of accumulated depreciation (see 
Note D) and lease assets reduced by the outstanding balances of debt, including lease liability and 
deferred inflows of resources related to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 

▪ Restricted – expendable, grants and contracts: Resources related to grants, contracts, and taxes, 
including taxes levied in the prior reporting period and received in the reporting period, whose use 
is subject to externally-imposed restrictions including limitations on the use of net assets imposed 
by enabling legislation. 

▪ Unrestricted: Resources that are not subject to externally-imposed restrictions. Unrestricted 
resources may be designated for specific purposes by the Board of Trustees. Substantially all of the 
College’s unrestricted resources are designated for future uses or contingencies (See Note B). 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, 
it is the College’s policy to apply restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 

Grants and Scholarships: Student tuition and fees and bookstore revenues are presented net of grants and 
scholarships applied directly to student accounts.  Grants and scholarships consist primarily of awards to 
students from the Federal Pell Grant Program, Sinclair Community College grant programs, and the Sinclair 
Community College Foundation.  Payments made directly to students from grants and scholarships are 
presented as Student Aid. 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The College's federal direct loan program was determined to meet the definition of a fiduciary activity. 
However, as the assets are generally held for three months or less, they are reported as business-type 
activities with inflows and outflows reported within operating activities on the statement of cash flows. 

Operating Versus Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses: The College defines operating activities as 
reported on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as those that generally result 
from exchange transactions such as payments received for providing goods or services and payments made 
for goods or services received.  All of the College’s expenses are from exchange transactions.  Certain 
significant revenue streams relied on for operations are reported as nonoperating revenues as required by 
GASB Statement No. 35, and GASB’s Implementation Guide. Nonoperating revenue includes state 
appropriations, county property tax levy receipts, certain government grants, and investment income.  

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Tax Abatement: The College’s property tax revenue is affected by tax abatements entered into by 
Montgomery County.  The College’s property tax revenues were reduced by $757,801 and $529,603 for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Impact of COVID-19: On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a 
respiratory disease caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic, now known as COVID-19. In response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, governments have taken preventative or protective actions, such as temporary 
closures of non-essential businesses and “shelter-at-home” guidelines for individuals. As a result, the global 
economy has been negatively affected, and the College's operations were also impacted. Due to the 
“shelter-at-home” guidelines during April and May 2020, the College shifted to a remote online learning 
environment and sent students home.  To offset the financial impact to students and the losses incurred by 
the College due to the disruption caused by COVID-19, the College received grants and other relief primarily 
from the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). The College was allocated HEERF grants 
totaling $59,738,832, of which $23,734,571 was required to be given directly to students. For the year 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College recognized HEERF grant revenue totaling $33,252,740 and 
$23,664,568, respectively. All HEERF funds have been used as of June 30, 2022. Subsequent to June 30, 
2020, the College was allocated Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) of $3,211,072 which was fully utilized in 
fiscal year 2021.  The severity of the continued impact due to COVID-19 on the College’s financial condition, 
results of operations or cash flows will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the 
duration and severity of the pandemic and the extent and severity of the impact on the College's community, 
all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.  
 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements: As of June 30, 2022, the GASB issued the following 
statements implemented by the College: 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Accounting for Leases - During the current fiscal year, the College adopted GASB Statement No. 87, 
Leases.  As a result, the financial statements now include a liability for the present value of payments 
expected to be made and right-to-use assets, initially recorded at $5,724,489 at July 1, 2020. Lease activity 
is further described in Note G. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been 
restated in order to adopt GASB Statement No. 87. 

The effect of this new standard was as follows:   

 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements   
Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements – In March 2020, the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-
Public Partnership Arrangements, to bring a uniform guidance on how to report public-private and public-
public partnership arrangements. As a result, transferors in public-private or public-public arrangements will 
recognize receivables for installment payments, deferred inflows of resources, and, when applicable, capital 
assets. Operators will recognize liabilities for installment payments and intangible right-to-use assets, and 
when applicable, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities for assets being transferred. This statement 
also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements, in 
which a government compensates an operator for services such as designing, constructing, financing, 
maintaining, or operating an underlying asset for a period of time in an exchange of exchange-like 
transaction. The provisions of this statement are effective for the College’s financial statements for the year 
ending June 30, 2023. The standard is not expected to have a significant effect on the College’s financial 
statements. 
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NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements – In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements (SBITAs), which defines SBITAs and provides accounting and financial reporting for SBITAs 
by governments. This statement requires a government to recognize a subscription liability and an 
intangible right-to-use subscription asset for SBITAs. The University is currently evaluating the impact this 
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provision of this statement is effective 
for the College’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2023. 
 

Compensated Absences – In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, which updates the recognition and measurement guidance 
for compensated absences under a unified model. This statement requires that liabilities for compensated 
absences be recognized for leave that has not been used and leave that has been used but not yet paid in 
cash or settled through noncash means and establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that 
has not been used. It also updates disclosure requirements for compensated absences. The provisions of 
this statement are effective for the College's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2025. 
 

NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

In accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and the College’s investment policy, the College is authorized 
to invest cash in securities of the United States government or of its agencies or instrumentalities, the 
Treasurer of State’s pooled investment program and federally insured cash account program, obligations 
of any state, obligations of any Ohio political subdivision, certificates of deposit, written repurchase 
agreements with any eligible Ohio financial institution that is a member of the federal reserve system or 
federal home loan bank, money market funds, bankers’ acceptances, corporate obligations, U.S. and global 
fixed income mutual funds, and domestic and international equity mutual funds.  The classification of cash 
and cash equivalents and investments in the financial statements is based on criteria set forth in GASB 
Statement No. 9.  Cash equivalents are defined to include investments with original maturities of three 
months or less.   

Deposits: At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the College’s deposits in all funds was $16,364,696 
(reported as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of net position) and the financial institution balance 
was $17,978,017. The difference between the carrying amount and the financial institution balance was 
primarily due to outstanding checks at June 30, 2022.  Of the financial institution balance, $1,000,000 was 
covered by federal depository insurance and $250,000 had Federal Securities Investor Protection 
Corporation coverage.  The remaining balance of $16,728,017 was uninsured.   

At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the College’s deposits in all funds was $12,942,754 (reported as 
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of net position) and the financial institution balance was 
$14,011,748. The difference between the carrying amount and the financial institution balance was primarily 
due to outstanding checks at June 30, 2021.  Of the financial institution balance, $869,011 was covered by 
federal depository insurance and $250,000 had Federal Securities Investor Protection Corporation 
coverage.  The remaining balance of $12,892,737 was uninsured.   

The uninsured deposits were either 1) held in accounts at Ohio banks that maintain collateral pools securing 
public funds deposits in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code ($7,337,533 at June 30, 2022 and 
$6,605,933 at June 30, 2021), or 2) in the case of money market account balances were backed by the 
underlying securities held by the fund ($9,390,483 at June 30, 2022 and $6,286,804 at June 30, 2021).  
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the 
College’s deposits may not be returned to the College, or the College may not be able to recover the value 
of collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investments: Investments at June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $150,687,868 (amortized cost basis of 
$154,408,644) and $150,644,789 (amortized cost basis of $142,816,917), respectively.  

Investments at June 30 were as follows: 

 

 

The certificates of deposit were fully FDIC insured.  The federal agency, municipal and corporate bonds 
were all credit quality “A” or higher, as required by the College’s investment policy.  Government National 
Mortgage Association (GNMA) bonds are aggregations of home mortgages that carry the full faith and credit 
guaranty of the U.S. government, the same guaranty provided to U.S. Treasury instruments.  U.S. 
treasuries and GNMA bonds are not subject to the credit risk disclosures of GASB Statement No. 40. 
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

There are no limitations or restrictions on any STAR Ohio participant withdrawals due to redemption notice 
periods, liquidity fees, or redemption rates. However, notice must be given to STAR Ohio 24 hours in 
advance of all deposits and withdrawals exceeding $25 million. STAR Ohio reserves the right to limit the 
transactions to $50 million, requiring excess amounts to be transacted the following business day(s), but 
only to the $50 million limit. All accounts of the STAR Ohio investors will be combined for these purposes. 

A GNMA bond does not mature all at once on its stated maturity date.  Rather, a portion of each bond 
matures every month, and an entire bond will usually mature many years before its maturity date.  The 
following homeowner actions result in the return of principal to the owners of a GNMA bond:  1) making a 
monthly mortgage payment which includes a principal component, 2) refinancing a mortgage and thereby 
paying off the old mortgage, 3) selling a home and paying off the mortgage.   GNMA principal amounts 
returned to the College are either reinvested, held as cash, or used in operations as deemed appropriate. 
For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College’s GNMA investments returned principal as 
follows: 

    
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
The College’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates is to 
comply with the requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and to insure that the term of the maturity of 
investments does not exceed the need for the availability of the funds invested.  The College has the ability 
and intent to hold all investment securities until maturity; therefore, it is not anticipated that market gains or 
losses will be realized.   

The College’s cash and investments help support allocated net positions designated by the Board of 
Trustees or restricted by outside parties for the following purposes: 
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NOTE C – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The College categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair 
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  Investments that 
are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient 
are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below. 

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value 
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the valuation. The College’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair 
value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset. 

The College has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022 and 2021: 
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NOTE C – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

The fair value of debt securities classified as Level 2 are valued using other inputs that are observable, 
either directly or indirectly. These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in 
active markets and other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly 
quoted intervals. 

Investments on the statement of net position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 include certificates of deposits 
of $251,277 and $268,067, respectively, and investments in STAR Ohio of $52,819,853 and $50,662,596, 
respectively. The certificates of deposit and investment in STAR Ohio are excluded from the fair value table 
above as they are measured at amortized cost. 

NOTE D – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows: 

 

As of June 30, 2022, the College was a party to outstanding construction contracts and commitments 
totaling approximately $5,500,000.  
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NOTE D – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

 

NOTE E – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liabilities activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows: 

 

Long-term liabilities are primarily accumulated sick leave payable to employees upon retirement.  See Note 
A, Compensated Absences, for further discussion. See Note G, Leases for further discussion. 

NOTE F – STATE AND COUNTY SUPPORT 

The College is an institution of higher education that receives a student-based subsidy from the State of 
Ohio using a performance outcomes-based formula devised by the Ohio Department of Higher Education 
(formerly known as the Ohio Board of Regents).  In addition to student subsidies, the State of Ohio provides 
a portion of the funding for the construction of major plant facilities on the College’s campuses, as well as 
for the renovation of facilities and the purchase of equipment. 
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NOTE F – STATE AND COUNTY SUPPORT (Continued) 

The College also receives support from two Montgomery County, Ohio property tax levies.  A successful 
ballot issue in the November 2017 primary election renewed a 3.2 mill levy that commenced January 1, 
2020 and will end December 31, 2027.  On November 3, 2015, an additional 1 mill operating levy was 
passed.  It commenced January 1, 2015 and will end December 31, 2022.  By state law, levy receipts must 
be used solely for the benefit of Montgomery County residents attending the College in the form of student 
tuition subsidy, student scholarships and instructional facilities, equipment, and support services located 
within Montgomery County.   

Property taxes receivable represent outstanding property taxes which were measurable at June 30, 2022. 
Total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable amounts; however, since these 
revenue collections to be received during the available period are not intended to finance 2022 operations, 
the receivable amount is recorded as deferred inflows of resources. 

NOTE G – LEASES  

The College leases certain assets from various third parties. The assets leased are land, buildings and 
office space. Payments are fixed monthly with a discount rate of 4.5%. For the year ended June 30, 2022 
and 2021, there were 2 and 1, new leases, respectively, with one lease purchased at June 30, 2022.   

Lease asset activity of the College was as follows: 
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NOTE G – LEASES (Continued) 

The College had no other outflows related to leasing arrangements that occurred during the year and were 
not previously included in the measurement of the lease liability. 

Future principal and interest payment requirements related to the College’s lease liability at June 30, 2022 
are as follows:  

 

As of June 30, 2022, the College has no commitments related to leases for which the lease term has not 
commenced. The capital interest expense for the leases in fiscal years 2022 and 2021 was $209,522 and 
$225,988, respectively. 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
 
Plan Descriptions: The College participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS) and 
the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
defined benefit public employee retirement systems governed by the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) that cover 
substantially all employees of the College.  Each system has three retirement plan options available to its 
members, and provides retirement, survivor, and disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.  
The systems also each provide postemployment healthcare benefits (including Medicare B premiums) to 
retirees and beneficiaries who elect to receive those benefits. 

 
Each retirement system issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the pension and postemployment healthcare plans. The reports 
may be obtained by contacting: 

 State Teachers Retirement System                        Ohio Public Employees Retirement  
   of Ohio                                                                     System 
 275 E. Broad Street                                                 277 East Town Street 
 Columbus, Ohio 43215                                            Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 (888) 227-7877                                                        (800) 222-7377 
 www.strsoh.org                                                        www.opers.org 

Contributions: State retirement law requires contributions by covered employees and their employers, and 
Chapter 3307 of the ORC limit the maximum rate of contributions.  The retirement boards of the systems 
individually set contributions rates within the allowable limits.  The adequacy of employer contribution rates 
is determined annually by an actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. Under these 
provisions, each College’s contribution is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance a portion of the unfunded accrued liability.   

Member contributions are set at the maximum authorized by the ORC. The plans’ 2022 and 2021 employer 
contribution and member contribution rates on covered payroll to each system were: 

 

The College’s required actual pension and OPEB contributions to the plans were:   
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Benefits Provided:   

STRS: Plan benefits are established under Chapter 3307 of the ORC, as amended by Substitute Senate 
Bill 342 in 2012, which gives the Retirement Board the authority to make future adjustments to the member 
contribution rate, retirement age and service requirements, and the COLA as the need or opportunity arises, 
depending on the retirement system’s funding progress.  

Effective August 1, 2017 – July 1, 2019, any member may retire who has (1) five years of service credit and 
attained age 60; (2) 25 years of service credit and attained age 55; or (3) 30 years of service credit 
regardless of age. Beginning August 1, 2015, eligibility requirements for an unreduced benefit changed.  
The maximum annual retirement allowance, payable for life, considers years of credited service, final 
average salary (three to five years) and multiplies by a factor ranging from 2.2 percent to 2.6 percent with 
0.1 percent incremental increases for years greater than 30-31, depending on retirement age. 

A defined benefit plan or combined plan member with five or more years of credited service who is 
determined to be disabled (illness or injury preventing individual’s ability to perform regular job duties for at 
least 12 months) may receive a disability benefit. Additionally, eligible survivors of members who die before 
service retirement may qualify for monthly benefits. New members on or after July 1, 2013 must have at 
least 10 years of qualifying service credit to apply for disability benefits. 

A death benefit of $1,000 is payable to the beneficiary of each deceased retired member who participated 
in the plan. Death benefit coverage up to $2,000 can be purchased by participants in all three of the plans. 
Various other benefits are available to members’ beneficiaries. 

STRS Ohio provides access to healthcare coverage to retirees who participated in the Defined Benefit or 
Combined Plans, and their dependent.  Coverage under the current program includes hospitalization, 
physicians’ fees, prescription drugs, and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums.  
Pursuant to the ORC, the State Teachers Retirement Board (the “Board”) has discretionary authority over 
how much, if any, of the healthcare costs will be absorbed by STRS Ohio.  All benefit recipients pay a 
portion of the healthcare cost in the form of a monthly premium. 

OPERS: Plan benefits are established under Chapter 145 of the ORC, as amended by Substitute Senate 
Bill 343 in 2012.  The requirements to retire depend on years of service (5 to 30 years) and on attaining the 
age of 48 to 62, depending on when the employee became a member.    Members retiring before age 65 
with less than 30 years’ service credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit.  Member retirement 
benefits are calculated on a formula that considers years of service (5-30 years), age (48-62 years) and 
final average salary, using a factor ranging from 1.0 percent to 2.5 percent. 

A plan member who becomes disabled before age 60 or at any age, depending on when the member 
entered the plan, and who has completed 60 contributing months is eligible for a disability benefit. 



SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 

41 
 

NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

A death benefit of $500 - $2,500 is determined by the number of years of service credit of the retiree. 
Benefits may transfer to a beneficiary upon death with 1.5 years of service credits with the plan obtained 
within the last 2.5 years, except for law enforcement and public safety personnel who are eligible 
immediately upon employment. 

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee’s retirement allowance 
subsequent to the employee’s retirement date.  The annual adjustment, if applicable, is 3 percent, or an 
amount based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3 percent. 

Net Pension Liability, Deferrals, and Pension Expense: At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College reported a 
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of STRS and OPERS. As of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, the net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 for STRS and December 31, 
2021 and 2020 for OPERS, respectively. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The College's proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of its long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating reporting units, actuarially determined.   

 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College recognized pension (recovery) expense of 
$(16,885,462) and $(3,389,894), respectively.  At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

In addition, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the next year. 

Net OPEB Asset, Deferrals, and OPEB Expense: At June 30, 2022, the College reported an asset for its 
proportionate share of the net OPEB asset of STRS and OPERS. For June 30, 2022, the net OPEB asset 
was measured as of June 30, 2021 for STRS and December 31, 2021 for the OPERS plan. For June 30, 
2021, the net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2020 for STRS and December 31, 2020 for the 
OPERS plan. The total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of those dates, except OPERS which used an actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2020 
and 2019, respectively, rolled forward to the measurement date by incorporating the expected value of 
health care cost accruals, the actual health care payments, and interest accruals, during the year for the 
defined benefit health care plans. 

Typically, the College’s proportion of the net OPEB asset would be based on a projection of its long-term 
share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating reporting 
units, actuarially determined, except as noted below. 

For plan years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, STRS did not allocate employer contributions to the OPEB 
plan.  Therefore, STRS’ calculation of the employers’ proportionate share is based on total contributions to 
the plan for both pension and OPEB. 

For plan years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, OPERS did not allocate employer contributions to the 
OPEB plan.  Therefore, OPERS’ calculation of the employers’ proportionate share is based on total 
contributions to the plan for both pension and OPEB. 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College recognized OPEB (recovery) expense of 
$(7,423,876) and $(28,895,018), respectively.  At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the College reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:  

 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will 
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:  

 

In addition, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the 
net OPEB asset in the next year.   
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability and OPEB asset is based on the results of an actuarial 
valuation, and were determined using the following actuarial assumptions for the College’s current year: 

 

The following are actuarial assumptions for the College’s prior year: 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Pension Discount Rate: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be 
made at contractually required rates for all plans.  Based on those assumptions, each pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current 
active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
The discount rates used to measure the total pension liabilities for STRS were 7.00 percent and 7.45 
percent for plan years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The discount rates used to measure 
the total pension liability for OPERS were 6.90 percent and 7.20 percent for the plan years ended December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
 
OPEB Discount Rate:  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be 
made at contractually required rates for all plans. Plans that project fiduciary net position to be insufficient 
to make all projected future benefit payments for current active and inactive employees used a blended 
discount rate between the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments and a 20-year municipal 
bond rate applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB asset. 
 
STRS – OPEB Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB assets was 7.00 and 
7.45 percent for the plan years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current 
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB asset.  
 
OPERS – OPEB Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB assets were 6.00 
percent for the plan years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefits payments for current 
and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB asset.    
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension and OPEB plans investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  
OPERS has two different portfolios of investment, a defined benefit portfolio for pension and health care 
portfolio for OPEB. As a result, there are different target allocations and long-term expected real rates of 
return disclosed for each portfolio. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic (geometric for 
STRS) real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table as of the dates 
listed below: 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the net 
pension liability of the College, calculated using the discount rate listed below, as well as what the College’s 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage point lower 
or 1.00 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the net pension 
asset of the College, calculated using the discount rate listed below, as well as what the College’s net 
OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage point lower or 1.00 
percentage point higher than the current rate:  
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate: The following presents 
the net OPEB asset of the College, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate listed below, as well as 
what the College’s net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a health care cost trend rate that is 
1.00 percentage point lower or 1.00 percentage point higher than the current rate:  

 

Pension Plan and OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary 
net positions is available in the separately issued STRS and OPERS financial reports. 

Assumption Changes: During the measurement periods ended June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, 
respectively, certain assumption changes were made by the plans. The OPERS pension discount rate was 
reduced from 7.20 percent to 6.90 percent, which impacted the annual actuarial valuation for the pension 
liability as of December 31, 2021. The STRS pension and OPEB discount rates were reduced from 7.45 
percent to 7.00 percent, which impacted the annual actuarial valuation for the pension liabilities and OPEB 
assets as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date. 
 
Benefit Changes: There were no significant benefit terms changes for the pension or OPEB plans since the 
prior two measurement dates for STRS.  Effective in 2022, OPERS will replace the current self-insured 
group plan with a marketplace concept for pre-Medicare retirees. 

Changes since the measurement date: STRS had a new experience study completed for the period July 1, 
2016 to June 30, 2021 which will be used for the 2022 valuation. The experience study indicates changes 
in assumptions, including updating mortality tables from RP-2014 to PubT-2010 (and related improvement 
factors), retirement rates, and OPEB participation assumptions which will impact STRS net pension liability 
and net OPEB asset. 

Payable to the Pension Plans: At June 30, 2022, the College reported a payable of $1,169,642 for the 
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan, required for the year ended June 30, 2022.  At 
June 30, 2021, the College reported a payable of $1,180,708 for the outstanding amount of contributions 
to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021.  There was no reported payable to the 
OPEB plan as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Defined Contribution Pension Plan: The Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) is a defined contribution pension 
plan, under IRS Section 401(a), and established by Ohio Amended Substitute House Bill 586 (ORC 
3305.02) on March 31, 1998, for public institutions of higher education. The College’s Board of Trustees 
adopted the College’s plan on April 18, 1998. Full-time employees are eligible to choose a provider, in lieu 
of STRS or OPERS, from the list of nine providers currently approved by the Ohio Department of Insurance 
and who hold agreements with the College. Employee and employer contributions equal to those required 
by STRS, and OPERS are required for the ARP, less any amounts required to be remitted to the state 
retirement system in which the employee would otherwise have been enrolled.  

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to participate in 
the ARP. Under this plan, employees who would have otherwise been required to be in STRS or OPERS, 
and who elect to participate in the ARP, must contribute the employee’s share of retirement contributions 
to one of nine private providers approved by the Ohio Department of Insurance. The legislation mandates 
that the employer must contribute an amount to the state retirement system to which the employee would 
have otherwise belonged, based on an independent actuarial study commissioned by the Ohio Retirement 
Study Council and submitted to the Ohio Board of Regents. That amount is 4.47 percent for STRS and 2.44 
percent for OPERS for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.  The employer also contributes what 
would have been the employer’s contribution under STRS, or OPERS, less the aforementioned 
percentages, to the private provider selected by the employee. The College plan provides these employees 
with immediate plan vesting. The ARP does not provide disability benefits, survivor benefits, or 
postretirement health care. Benefits are entirely dependent on the sum of contributions and investment 
returns earned by each participant’s choice of investment options. STRS and OPERS also offer a defined 
contribution plan and a combined plan with features of both a defined contribution plan and a defined benefit 
plan. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, employee contributions totaled $499,798 and $417,031, 
respectively, and the College recognized pension expense of $446,995 and $469,295 respectively.   

NOTE I – INSURANCE 

The College maintains comprehensive and umbrella insurance coverage with private carriers for real 
property, building contents, vehicles, and liability.  Vehicle policies include liability coverage for bodily injury 
and property damage.  The College’s Aviation Policy includes unmanned aerial systems. Additionally, the 
College carries professional coverage for employees and its Board of Trustees, Crime & Employee 
Dishonesty coverage and Cyber Liability coverage.  The College retains a consulting firm to perform an 
annual examination of all insurance policies.  

The College is self-insured for certain employee health benefit programs.  Funding for these programs is based 
on actuarial projections provided by the plan administrators.  The College also offers a high deductible health 
savings account option for its employees.  Aggregate and specific stop loss insurance is maintained for benefit 
payments that exceed the maximum limits outlined in the policy.  The claims liability of approximately 
$1,186,000 and $1,298,000 reported at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, is based on an estimate 
provided by an actuary and the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, which requires that a liability for unpaid claim costs, including 
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not reported claims, be reported.  No incremental claim adjustment 
expenses are included in the estimate. The amount is in the accrued salaries, wages and benefits on the 
statement of net position. 
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NOTE I – INSURANCE (continued) 

Changes in claims activity for the past three fiscal years are as follows: 

 

 

There have been no significant changes in coverage from last year.  Settled claims have not exceeded 
commercial coverage in any of the past three years. 

NOTE J – CONTINGENCIES 

The College receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state, and local agencies in the 
form of grants.  The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with 
terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any 
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the College.  As of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, the College is not aware of any potential disallowances. 

NOTE K – SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

The College is the sole beneficiary of the Sinclair Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”), a 
separate not-for-profit entity governed by a separate board of trustees, organized for the purpose of 
promoting education activities.  Amounts received by the College from the Foundation in the form of private 
gifts, grants, and contracts amounted to $2,239,045 and $2,713,581 for the years ended June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. 

The following tables present information about the Foundation’s assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis at June 30, 2022 and 2021.  
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NOTE K – SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION (Continued) 

 

The fair value of the investments valued at net asset value (NAV) at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 
determined primarily based on unobservable inputs. The Foundation estimates the fair value of these 
investments based on the most recent investment statement provided for the respective funds. The 
Foundation holds shares or interests in investment companies at year end whereby the fair value of the 
investment held is estimated based on the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment 
company.  
 

The Foundation’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of 
the reporting period. 
 

 
 

There were unfunded commitments of $400,000 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The limited 
partnerships do not have any redemption restrictions or notice periods. 
 

The limited partnership investments hold investments in various preferred stocks, convertible promissory 
notes, and common stocks. The fair values of the investments in this class have been estimated using the 
net asset value per share of the investments. 
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NOTE K – SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION (Continued) 

Capital assets consist of the following at June 30, 2022 and 2021: 

 

The Foundation purchased the land and building in 2012 and donated it to Courseview Holdings, LLC, a 
limited liability company of which the Foundation is the sole member and for which the amounts are included 
in the Foundation’s consolidated financial statements. All of the property is being leased by the LLC to the 
College for the College’s use in expanding its Courseview Campus in Mason, Ohio. 

Net assets of the Foundation are classified based on the presence or absence for donor-imposed 
restrictions: 
 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed or the donor-
imposed restriction have expired or been fulfilled. Net assets in this category may be expended for 
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Foundation. 
 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. 
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the 
Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the 
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

 

Earnings, gains, and losses on donor-restricted net assets are classified as net assets without donor 
restrictions unless specifically restricted by the donor or by applicable state law. 
 

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows: 
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NOTE K – SINCLAIR COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION (Continued) 

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 were as follows: 
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Changes to Benefit Terms: There were no changes in benefit terms affecting the STRS and OPERS 
plans.  

Changes of Assumptions (STRS):  During the plan year ended June 30, 2021, the investment rate of 

return decreased from 7.45 percent to 7.00 percent.  

During the plan year ended June 30, 2017, there were changes to several assumptions for STRS.  The 

cost-of-living adjustment dropped from 2.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  The wage inflation dropped from 2.75 

percent to 2.50 percent.  The investment rate of return decreased from 7.75 percent to 7.45 percent.  The 

mortality tables used changed from RP-2000 to RP-2014. 

Changes of Assumptions (OPERS):  During the plan year ended December 31, 2021, there were 

changes to several assumptions for OPERS. The discount rate was reduced from 7.50 percent to 6.90 

percent. The wage inflation dropped from 3.25 percent to 2.75 percent. The projected salary increase range 

changed from 3.25-10.75 percent to 2.75-10.75 percent. The experience study changed from the 5 year 

period ended December 31, 2015 to the 5 year period ended December 31, 2020. The mortality tables used 

changed from RP-2014 to PUB-2010. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 2018, the discount rate was reduced from 7.50 percent to 7.20 

percent. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 2016, there were changes to several assumptions for OPERS.  

The wage inflation dropped from 3.75 percent to 3.25 percent.  The projected salary increase range 

changed from 4.25-10.05 percent to 3.25-10.75 percent.  The mortality tables used changed from RP-2000 

to RP-2014. 
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Changes to Benefit Terms: There were no changes in benefit terms affecting the STRS and OPERS plans 
for the plan years ended June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, respectively.  

Changes of Assumptions (STRS):  During the plan year ended June 30, 2021, the investment rate of 

return decreased from 7.45 percent to 7.00 percent. The health care cost trend rates also decreased from 
4.93 percent to 9.62 percent initial and 4.00 percent ultimate for plan year ended June 30, 2020, to 16.20 
percent to 30.00 percent initial and 4 percent ultimate for plan year ended June 30, 2021. 

During the plan year ended June 30, 2018, there were changes to several assumptions for STRS. The 
health care cost trend rates decreased from 6.00 percent to 11.00 percent initial and 4.50 percent ultimate 
for plan year ended June 30, 2017, to (5.23) percent to 9.62 percent initial and 4 percent ultimate for plan 
year ended June 30, 2018. The discount rate increased from a blended rate between the long-term 
expected rate of return and a 20-year municipal bond rate of 4.13 percent to the investment rate of return 
of 7.45 percent based on the cash flow analysis. 

Changes of Assumptions (OPERS):  During the year ended December 31, 2021, there were changes to 
several assumptions for OPERS. The experience study changed from the 5-year period ended December 
31, 2015 to the 5-year period ended December 31, 2020. The municipal bond rate decreased from 2.00 
percent to 1.84 percent. Wage inflation decreased from 3.25 percent to 2.75 percent. The projected salary 
increase range changed from 3.25-10.75 percent to 2.75-10.75 percent. Health care cost trend rate 
decreased from 8.50 percent initial, 3.50 percent ultimate in 2035 to 5.50 percent initial, 3.50 percent 
ultimate in 2034. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 2020, there were changes to several assumptions for OPERS.  
The health care cost trend rates decreased from 10.5 percent initial and 3.50 percent ultimate to 8.50 
percent initial to 3.50 percent ultimate. The discount rate was reduced from 3.16 percent to 6.00 percent. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 2019, there were changes to several assumptions for OPERS. 
The health care cost trend rates decreased from 10.00 percent initial and 3.25 percent ultimate to 10.50 
percent initial and 3.50 percent ultimate. The discount rate was reduced from 3.96 percent to 3.16 percent. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management and the Board of Trustees
Sinclair Community College

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Sinclair Community College (the "College") as of and for the year ended June 30,
2022 and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 8, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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To Management and the Board of Trustees
Sinclair Community College

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the College's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

November 8, 2022
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Sinclair Community College

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sinclair Community College's (the "College") compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the College's major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2022. The College's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.

We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the College's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.  

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the College's federal
program.
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To the Board of Trustees
Sinclair Community College

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the College's
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the College’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance,
we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the College's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the College's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control
over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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To the Board of Trustees
Sinclair Community College

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 8, 2022
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Sinclair Community College

Federal Agency/Pass-through Agency/Program Title

Assistance 

Listing 

Number

Pass-through Entity 

Identifying Number

Total Amount 

Provided to 

Subrecipients  Federal Expenditures 

Clusters:

Student Financial Assistance Cluster - U.S. Department of Education:

Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 N/A -   $                     769,070$                  
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A -                          59,706                      
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A -                          17,487,552                
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A -                          14,733,917                

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster -                          33,050,245                

Trio Cluster - U.S. Department of Education:

Trio Upward Bound 84.047A N/A -                          744,659                    

Trio Student Support Services 84.042A N/A -                          262,755                    

Trio Talent Search Program 84.044A N/A -                          621,673                    

Total Trio Cluster -                          1,629,087                 

Research and Development Cluster - National Science Foundation:

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          93,730                      

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          114,757                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          199,298                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A 33,752                 223,398                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          140,588                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          28,424                      

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          187,824                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A 18,985                 207,668                    

Education and Human Resources 47.076 N/A -                          76,079                      

Education and Human Resources - Pass-through Collin County Community College District 47.076 216007-SCC -                          23,715                      

Education and Human Resources - Pass-through Education Development Center, Inc. 47.076 12422 -                          821                           

Education and Human Resources - Pass-through The Ohio State University 47.076 60067276-SCC -                          75,175                      

Education and Human Resources - Pass-through Riverside Community College District 47.076 C-0005504 -                          48,546                      

Total Research and Development Cluster 52,737                 1,420,023                 

Other programs:

Department of Defense:

Basic and Applied Scientific Research - Pass-through Lorain County Community College 12.300 N/A -                          178,208                    

Defense STEM Education Consortium - Pass-through RTI International 12.560 28-312-0216908-66551L -                          82,516                      

DOD, NDEP, DOTC-STEM Education Outreach Implementation - Pass-through Building 

Engineering & Science Talent 12.560 888-19-22-01 -                          6,474                        

Total Department of Defense -                          267,198                    

Department of Justice - Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A -                          2,799                        

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

See notes to schedule of
   expenditures of federal awards. 65



Sinclair Community College

Federal Agency/Pass-through Agency/Program Title

Assistance 

Listing 

Number

Pass-through Entity 

Identifying Number

Total Amount 

Provided to 

Subrecipients  Federal Expenditures 

Other programs (continued):

Department of Labor - Apprenticeship USA Grants - Pass-through James A. Rhodes 17.285 N/A -   $                     43,120$                    
State College

Department of State:
Capacity Building for U.S. Study Abroad Program - Pass-through World Learning 19.009 CBPSA19-Sinclair -                          5,300                        

The Community College Initiative Program - Pass-through Northern Virginia Community College 19.009 N/A -                          194,850                    

Total Department of State -                          200,150                    

Department of Transportation:

Air Transportation Centers of Excellence - Pass-through Kansas State University 20.109 A20-0150-S001 -                          14,100                      

Air Transportation Centers of Excellence - Pass-through New Mexico State University 20.109 Q02114 -                          18,527                      

Total Department of Transportation -                          32,627                      

Department of Veteran Affairs - Post-9/11 Veterans Educational Assistance 64.027 N/A -                          3,830                        

U.S. Department of Education:

Undergraduate International Studies and Foreign Language Programs 84.016A N/A -                          16,181                      

I Educate Montgomery Country - Pass through Wright State University 84.027 671487-1 -                          26,209                      

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States - Pass-through Ohio

Department of Education 84.048 20-C2 2005 -                          587,377                    

Transition Programs for Students with Intellectual Disabilities into Higher Education - 

Pass-through The Ohio State University 84.407A 60075419 -                          6,233                        

Equity for Each - Pass-through Ohio Department of Education 84.048A 063362 -                          131,630                    

Child Care Access Means Parents in School 84.335A N/A -                          186,942                    

Education Stabilization Fund:

COVID-19: Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Student Aid 84.425E N/A -                          16,356,315                

COVID-19: Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional Aid 84.425F N/A -                          15,511,840                

COVID-19: Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Strengthening Institutions 84.425M N/A -                          1,384,585                 

COVID-19: Governors Emergency Education Relief Fund - Pass-through Ohio

Department of Higher Education 84.425C N/A -                          52,236                      

Total Education Stabilization Fund -                          33,304,976                

Total U.S. Department of Education -                          34,259,548                

Department of Health and Human Services - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families -
Pass-through Montgomery County - Department of Jobs and Family Services 93.558 CE#900328, CE#000105 -                          300,000                    

Air Force Research Laboratory - Regional Fabrication & Certification Training Labs - Digital 

Thread Technologies - Pass-through ARCTOS Technology Solutions U01 165524.09.00.0001.00.03 -                          1,513,137                 

Total federal awards 52,737$               72,721,764$              

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

See notes to schedule of
   expenditures of federal awards. 66



Sinclair Community College

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
grant activity of Sinclair Community College (the “College”) under programs of the federal government for
the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”). Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the College.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available.

The College has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate to recover indirect costs,
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 3 - Adjustments and Transfers

The College carried forward $12,945 of Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant (FSEOG)
Program (84.007) funds from the 2020-2021 award year, which was spent in the 2021-2022 award year.
The College carried forward $28,829 of FSEOG Program funds from the 2021-2022 award year to be
spent in the 2022-2023 award year. During 2022, the College also transferred and spent $236,241 of
Federal Work-Study Program (84.033) funds in the FSEOG program.
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Sinclair Community College

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

 Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes X  No

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes X  None reported

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?  Yes X  None reported

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

 Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes X  No

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes X  None reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)?  Yes X  No

Identification of major programs:

ALN Name of Federal Program or Cluster Opinion

84.425C,
84.425E,

84.425F, and
84.425M COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund Unmodified

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs: $2,181,653

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes  No

Section II - Financial Statement Audit Findings

None

Section III - Federal Program Audit Findings

None
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